

Draft Zoning Bylaw amendments pertaining to Accessory Dwelling Units and Height of  
Accessory Buildings in Residential Districts, for Public Hearing on September 10, 2019  
(proposed changes shown in bold and strike-out)

#### 4.2.1 Single Family Dwelling

A detached dwelling unit designed and used exclusively as a single housekeeping unit with common cooking and living facilities provided that in the Limited Business District such use conforms to the dimensional regulation for the Residence C District. No more than one dwelling shall be located upon a lot except as provided pursuant to Subsections 4.2.4, ~~and 4.2.5,~~ **and 4.2.9.**

#### 4.2.9 Accessory ~~Apartments~~ **Dwelling Units (ADUs)**

An accessory ~~apartment~~ **dwelling unit** is a second dwelling unit located **either a) within or attached to** a structure constructed as a detached ~~one single~~ family dwelling, subordinate in size to the principal dwelling unit and separated from it in a manner that maintains the appearance of the structure as a one family unit, **or b) in a detached accessory structure on the same lot as the principal dwelling, for use as a complete living unit, with provisions for cooking, eating, sanitation, and sleeping.**

##### 4.2.9.1 General Objectives

The provision of accessory dwelling units in owner occupied ~~one single~~ family dwellings is intended to:

- 1) increase the number of small dwelling units available for rent in town,
- 2) increase the range of choice of housing accommodations,
- 3) encourage greater diversity of population with particular attention to young adults and senior citizens,
- 4) encourage a more economic and energy-efficient use of the town's housing supply while maintaining the appearance and character of the town's single family neighborhoods, **and**
- 5) **To help the Town meet its housing needs without detracting from its historic development pattern.**

##### 4.2.9.2 General Conditions and Requirements for all Accessory Dwelling Units

~~The Building Inspector shall issue a building permit for an accessory apartment in a detached, one family dwelling in any residential district provided that the unit meets the standards of the building code and each of the following conditions and requirements is met:~~

~~(a) General~~

- (i) The owner of the ~~dwelling lot on~~ in which the accessory ~~apartment~~ **dwelling unit** is created, shall occupy either of the dwelling units **on the lot** ~~in the located structure in question,~~ except for temporary absences of up to six months. For the purposes of this section, the "owner" shall be one or more individuals ~~residing in a dwelling,~~ who hold title **to the lot** and for whom ~~the~~ **either dwelling unit** is the primary residence for voting and tax purposes. **Land ownership shall not be divided or converted into condominiums.**

- (ii) There shall be no more than one accessory ~~apartment~~ **dwelling unit** ~~within a one family dwelling, whether internal or detached, on any lot.~~
- (iii) There shall be no boarders or lodgers within either unit of a dwelling with an accessory ~~apartment~~ **dwelling unit**. **The provisions of Section 5.1.6 shall not apply to permitted accessory dwelling units.**
- (iv) ~~The gross floor area of the dwelling, including the basement shall be at least 1,800 square feet. (Note: Gross floor area is defined as the sum of the gross horizontal areas of several floors of a building measured from the exterior face of exterior walls, or from the center line of a wall separating two (2) buildings, but not including interior parking spaces or any space where the floor to ceiling height is less than six (6) feet.)~~
- (v) The maximum gross floor area of the accessory ~~apartment~~ **dwelling unit** shall ~~not exceed 30% of the gross floor area of the dwelling~~ **be 900 square feet, or 1,000 square feet if Enhanced Energy Efficiency and/or Universal Design standards are met. Gross floor area for this purpose is defined as the sum of the gross horizontal areas of several floors measured from the exterior face of exterior walls or from the center line of a wall separating units, but not including interior parking spaces or any space where the floor to ceiling height is less than six (6) feet. The Universal Design standard for this purpose is defined as providing at least the following features: infrastructure in bathrooms to accommodate installation of grab bars around toilets and tubs/showers; clear width at all door openings of a minimum of 32 inches and a maximum of 48 inches; low threshold entrance (maximum one step) and no interior thresholds. The Enhanced Energy Efficiency standard for this purpose is defined as a five point HERS rating improvement or equivalent compared to the otherwise applicable energy efficiency requirement of the Building Code, with verification to the satisfaction of the Building Inspector.**
- (vi) There shall be no more than two (2) bedrooms in an accessory ~~apartment~~ **dwelling unit**.
- (vii) No structure that is not connected to the public water and sanitary sewer systems shall have an accessory ~~apartment~~ **dwelling unit**.
- (viii) **Any dwelling unit offered for short-term rental as defined under MGL 640 shall only be authorized by the Board of Appeals by Special Permit.**

#### 4.2.9.3 Additional Requirements for Internal Accessory Dwelling Units

##### Exterior Appearance of a Dwelling with an **Internal Accessory Apartment-Dwelling Unit**

The accessory ~~apartment~~ **dwelling unit** shall be designed so that the appearance of the structure remains that of a one family dwelling, subject further to the following conditions and requirements:

- (i) All stairways to second or third stories shall be enclosed within the exterior walls of the dwelling.
- (ii) Any new entrance shall be located on the side or in the rear of the dwelling.
- (iii) Where there are two or more existing entrances on the front facade of a dwelling, if modifications are made to any entrance, the result shall be that one appears to be the principal entrance and the other entrances appear to be secondary.

#### 4.2.9.4 Additional Requirements for Detached Accessory Dwelling Units

- i. **The maximum height for a detached ADU is 25 feet and 1.5 stories.**
- ii. **A detached ADU shall be sited further from the front lot line than the rear wall of the principal dwelling, with at least 10 feet between buildings, and at least 15 feet from side and rear lot lines.**
- iii. **The main entrance to a detached ADU shall face either the street or the interior of the lot.**
- iv. **Where the detached ADU is proposed to be less than 25' from a side or rear lot line, windows above the first floor facing such lot line shall be frosted, stained, or otherwise constructed to obscure line of sight to abutters.**

#### 4.2.9.5 Off-Street Parking requirements for all ADUs

There shall be provided at least two off-street parking spaces for the principal dwelling unit and at least ~~two~~ **one** off-street parking spaces for the accessory unit. In order to maintain the appearance of a single family neighborhood all parking spaces on the lot shall be subject further to the following conditions and requirements:

- (i) Each parking space and the driveway leading thereto shall be paved or shall have an all-weather gravel **or permeable grass paver**\_surface. No motor vehicles shall be regularly parked on the premises other than in such a parking space.
- (ii) No more than two outdoor parking spaces shall be located in the required front yard. All other parking spaces shall be either: 1) outdoor parking spaces located in a side or rear yard or 2) in a garage or carport.
- (iii) Parking spaces shall be located so that both the principal dwelling unit and the accessory ~~apartment~~ **dwelling unit** shall have at least one parking space with direct and unimpeded access to the street without passing through a parking space designated to serve the other dwelling unit.
- (iv) Where there are more than two outdoor parking spaces, there shall be provided suitable screening with evergreen or dense deciduous plantings, walls, fence, or a combination thereof in the area between the parking spaces and the nearest side lot line and, if the parking space is in the front yard and parallel to the street, in the area between the parking space and front lot line. Screening shall be sufficient to minimize the visual impact on abutters and to maintain the single family appearance of the neighborhood.

Table I: USE REGULATIONS

4.2.9 Accessory Apartment to be retitled as "Accessory Dwelling Unit".

## SECTION 6 – DIMENSIONAL AND LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS

### 6.2.7 Side Yards

Side yards shall be measured from the nearest point of any dwelling or structure to each side lot line, provided that nothing shall prevent the projection of uncovered steps and ramps or the construction of walls and fences. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the Residential Districts or for single family dwellings in a Limited Business District, a building of accessory use may be placed not less than 10 feet from a side line, and not less than 10 feet from another building on the same lot, so long as such building is not to be located nearer the sideline of the right of way than the rearmost point of the dwelling or any structure attached thereto, **except for detached accessory dwelling units which are governed by Section 4.2.9.**

### 6.2.8 Rear Yards

Rear yards shall be measured from the nearest point of any dwelling or structure attached thereto to the rear lot line, provided that nothing shall prevent the projection of uncovered steps and ramps or the construction of walls and fences. In the Residential Districts or for single family dwellings in the Limited Business District, no building of accessory use shall be placed nearer to the rear lot line than 10 feet. **Detached accessory dwelling units are governed by Section 4.2.9.**

### 6.2.10 Height

In all Districts, the building height shall not exceed the dimensions noted in Table II Dimensional Regulations.

In all Districts, except Residential Districts, the height of a building shall be measured as the vertical distance from the average ground level around the perimeter of a building to either the top of the highest ridge in case of a pitched roof, or the highest point of the exterior in the case of a flat roof.

In the Residential Districts, the height of a building shall be measured as the vertical distance from the base elevation to the top of the highest ridge in the case of a pitched roof, or the highest point of the exterior in the case of a flat roof.

**For any accessory building in a Residential District, the maximum height shall be twenty five (25) feet and one and a half (1 ½) stories. For this purpose, a half story is defined as a space under a sloping roof that has the line of intersection of the roof and wall face not more than three (3) feet above the floor level and in which space the possible floor area with head room of five (5) feet or less occupies at least forty (40) percent of the total floor area of the story directly beneath. Spaces not satisfying this definition shall be considered a full story.**

Chimneys, spires, towers, ventilators, skylights, tanks, antennae and other projections not used for human occupancy or storage may extend not more than 8-feet above the height limits herein fixed.

## SECTION 7 – SPECIAL PROVISIONS

### 7.4 Parking Regulations

#### 7.4.1 Required Spaces

##### 7.4.1.1 Dwelling including multiunit structure

Two parking spaces for each dwelling unit, **unless other specific criteria are provided.**